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UNTED STATES OF AMRlCA Criminal Number:

v. VIOLATIoNS:

NGOZIPOLE COUNTS 1-5: 18 U.S.c.§§ 1343,2
(Wire Fraud)

Defendant.
COUNT 6: LSU.S.C. §§64l,2
(Theft of Governent Property)

INICTMNT

The Grand Jur chares that

GENERU ALLEGATIONS

Al datcs in ths Indictment are alleged to be "on or about" the specific date stated. All

dollar amourts in ths Indictment are alleged to be "approximately" the specific amount stated.

At all times relevant in this Ildictment:

1. DEFENDAi'I NGOZI POLE worked as the offce manager for the Offce of United

States Senator Edward M. Keimedy (the "Kennedy Office").

2. Employees in the Ke:iedy Office received an annual salary.

3. The Kemiedy Offce generaly paid its staff a holiday bonus in December or Januar of a

..m . ..... ... . ....caleiiCìaryeil.Sucñ.¡j6ûu~esgenefir1y råfgeafrfü~i:;OOo~;oojJ(jeIDpìoyee: .

4. The Kennedy Offce also generay paid its =ployees an end-of-the-fiscal-yearbonus.

The fiscal year ended September 3D, and such bonuses generally ranged from $3,000 to $5,000

per employee.



5. Only the KeiU1edy Oftíce's Chief of StaIf or Senator Kennedy could approve a bonus

payment. The Kennedy Office had only one Chief of Staff at anyone time, although there were

successive Chiefs of Staff durg the relevant period.

6. Once the Chief of Staff authoried a bonus payment, DEFENDANT POLE was

responsible for, among other things, tranmitting to the Senate Disbursing Office the infoll1ation

necessary to affect the authoried bonus payment. POLE transmitted the necessar infonnation

uSIng a Payroll Action Authorization form ("PAA form").

7. DEFENDANT POLE also was responsible for maintaiiug records of salaiy amounts and

bonus payments, and on occasion providing that information to the Chief of Staff.

8. Bonus payments to employees were made using temporar salar increases. Rather than

provide one-time llUnp sum bonus payments, emp:oyees' annual salaries were raised for a short

period, after which the employees' anual salares were retured to their prior levels. Thc

duration and size of the temporary salar increase was determined by the amount of bonus

authOl1zed.

COUNTS ONE THROUGH FIVE
18 U.S.C. §§ 1343 and 2

. Wire Fraud

9. From at least 2003 though at least Ianuary2007, in the District ofColurrbia and

elsewhere, Defendant NGOZI POLE, devised and intended to devise a scheme and artifice to

defråud;anaf6i:o\)tårnlgmoii~y5YmealloffåiSeaiidfriid1îje;tp~eie~~e~,representit;;;s,

and promises from the United States, the United States Senate, and the Office of United States

Senator Edward M. Kennedy.
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PUROSE AND OBJECT OF THE SCHEME

10. It was a purpose of the scheme for DEFEl\TIANf POLE to emich himselfby giving

himself bonus payments and salary increases which were not authOlized by the Chief of Staff or

by Senator Kennedy and to which he was not entitled.

MANER AND MEANS OF THE SCHEME

11. DEFENDANT POLE caused the Senate Disbursing Offce to give him larger ~aiary and

ACTS IN FURTHERACE OF THE SCHE:Y

bonus payments than had been authorized by the Chief of Staff, totaling more than $75,000

between 2003 and 2007.

12. DEFENDANT POLE hid the existence of these unauthorized and larger-than-authorized

payments by transmitting to the Chief of Staff information falsely ~tating that POLE received

only the authorized bonus payments and not the larger-than-authoried payments which POLE

actually had leceived.

2003 Fiscal Year-End Bonus

13. From July 2003 through September 2003, DEFEl\TIANT POLE conunitted the

following acts, among others, to defraud the Senate of $ i 0,720.65 by triggering excess payments

of$15,720.65 when, at 110~:, only $5,000 in bonus payments had been authorized:

a. 011 July 16,2003, POLE wrote a memorandum to the Chief of Staf captioned

----------------------------------- --------------------------------------- ------------------- ------------------------------

................ ""'Foiiow upfrrn meeting"iu,;"luchhe summailzeclihe bonuses whiClihadbeen
_c,,,o,-c,,~-'''-_-+''_~_----

authoried for various employees, including a $5,000 bonus which had been authorized

for himself.
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b. On July 18, 2003, POLE completed and submitted a P AA form to the Senate

Disbursing Offce that caused POLE's annual salar to rise from $70,000 to $145,459 for

the peiiod July 16 until September 1.

c. On July 26, 2003, POLE completed and submitted a P AA foim to the Senate

Disbmsing Office that caused his salary increase to $145,459 to remain in effeot until

October 1, resulting in a total bonus of $15,720.65,.

d. On September 9, 2003, POLE emailed 1le Chief of Staff a "(rJeview of the

previonsly approved bonuses" in which he sumarzed the bonus payments which had

been authorized, including a $5,000 payment to himself.

e. On September 23, 2003, POLE wrote a memorandum to the Chief of StafI~

captioned "NOTES ON INCREASES FROM OUR MEETINGS" in which he

summaried the bonus payments which had been authorized, including a $5,000 bonus

payment to lùself, when iii fact POLE had received an additional $15,720.65.

2003 Holidav Bonus

14. From November 2003 though December 2003, DEFENDAN POLE committed the

following acts, an0ng others, to defraud the Senate of $3,000 by trggeiing excess payments of

$5,000 when only $2,000 in bonus payments had been authorized:

a. On November 23,2003, POLE completed and submitted a PM form to the Senatc

Disbursing Offce caused his aU11Ual salary to rise from $70,000 to $130,000 for the

period Novenber 16uitil December 1.

b. Notwithstandìng that POLE had received an email from the Chief of Staf advising

POLE that each staffer in the Kennedy Offce would receive a $2,000 Christmas bonus,

4



on December 9,2003, POLE completed and submitted a P AA form to the Senate

Disbursing Otlice that caused his salar increase to $130,000 to remai in effect until

December 16, resulting in a total bonus of $5 ,000.

2004 Fiscal Year-End Bonus

15. From April 2004 tluough October 2004, DEFEJ\TDANT POLE committed the following

acts, among others, to defraud the Senate of $21,253.10 by trggering excess payments of

$26,253.10 when only $5,000 in bonus payments had been anthorized:

a. On Apri 8, 2004, POLE completed and submitted a P AA form to the Senate

Disbursing Offoe that caused his anual salary to rise from $75,000 to $153,000 for the

period April 1 until April 16.

b. On June 1,2004, POLE completed and submitted a P AA form to the Senate

Disbursing Offce that caused his annual salaiyto rise from $75,000 to $150,000 for the

period June 1 unti July i.

c. On July 12, 2004, POLE sent an email to the Chief of Staffrecornending $5,000

bonuses for "senior staff," without disclosing that he already had received $9,500 in

excess payments in April and June.

d. On July 15, 2004, POLE completed and caused to be completed and submitted a

P AA faun to the Senate Disbursing Offce that caused his salary to increase from $75,000

to $155,415 effective July 16.

e. On July 15, 2004, POLE completed and submitted a second P A.ó" fonn to the

Senate Disbin-sing Offce that caused hi sElary increase to $155,415 to remain in effect

from July 16 until October i, rebwting in a total bonus of$26,253.1O.
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Conceahnent of2002, 2003. and 2004 Fiscal Year-End Bonuses 

16. By spreadsheet dated July 19,2004, DEFENANT POLE provided the Chief of Stsf

with a false accounting of bonuses he and other Kennedy Offce employees had received, which

concealed the true anounts POLE had reccived and would receive as follows:

\;. .--.
';i!\q~\j~t~gn~,~¡~n~~;,;

". 'AUglt~t'~(jii~ti~~#Mi' " ,

.',; ;;.'.;Ä.~g~~~;~(j~~~~A~~::' d:;

;:¡¡~Pi~l~~~~~~~~~~~:rs .

$1,500

$5,000

$5,000

$18,864.78

$15,720.65

$26,253.10

2004 Holiday Bonus 

17. Prom Decer:ber 2004 though Januar 2005, DEFENDANT POLE committed the

following acts, among others, to defraud the Senate of $9,007.37 by triggering excess payments

of $10,007.37 when only $1,000 in bonus payments had been authorized:

a. On December 6, 2004, POLE emailed the Chief of Staff, asking to discuss holiday

bonuses with her some time that week.

b. Notwithstanding that POLE had received an email telling him that a decision on

bonuses would have to wait until the Chief of Staff1earcd what kind of cuts would be

made to the budget, on Januar 16, 2005, POLE completed and submitted a P AA fOlli to

........~.=~.....................f!-Séime-m8û~~~~~am~my.tu.me-iÌ~7~i"¡O\NêF.=... ----- ---------------_.._- "':ce'-"""---'õ=õ'õ=-':.~,=õ~"=~,õ-

$157,559 effective Januar 16,

c. Notwthstanding that POLE received an cmail from thc Chcf of Staff authorizing

him to implement bonuses of$l,OOO "for all staff$l OOk or less for the next lOnnd of pay
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period," on Janua 31,2005, POLE completed and submitted a PAA form to the Senate

Disbursing Office that caused his salar increa~e to $157,559 to remain in effect until

March 1 resulting in a total bonus of $10,007.37.

2005 Fiscal Year-End Bonus

18. Prom July 2005 though Octoher 2005, DEFENDANT POLE conmutted the following

acts, among others, to defraud the Senate of$11,678.95 bytriggeriiig excess payments of

$16,678.95 when only $5,000 in bonus payments had been authoried:

a. On July 20,2005, POLE completed and submitted a PAA fomi to the Senate

Disbursing Offce tht cansed his anual salar to rise from $77,500 to $157,559 effective

July 16.

b. Notwthstanding that POLE had received an email from the Chief of Staff advising

that POLE would be receivig a $5,000 bonus, on August 10,2005, POLE completed aud

submitted a P AA form to the Senate Disbursing Offce that caused his salary increase to

$157,559 to remain III effect until October I, resultig in a total bonus of $16,678.95.

2005 Holiday Bonus 

19. From November 2005 tliongh Januar 2006, DEFENDANT POLE committed the

following acts, among others, to defraud the Senate of$1l,526.48bytrggering excess payments

of $13,026.48 when only $ 1,500 in bonus payments had been authorized:

a. On November 18,2005, POLE sent an ellil to another Senate employee wrting

that the Chief of Staff had approved "bonuses in the amount of $1500 across the board."
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b. On November 18, 2005, POLE completed ind submitted a P AA form to the Senate

Disbursing Ofiice that caused his anual salar to rise from $82,000 to $157,559 effective

January 1, 2006.

c. On January 6,2006, POLE completed and submitted a PAA form to the Senate

Disbursing Offce that caused his anual salar to rise fium $157,559 to $160,659 for the

peiiod from January I until March I, and then to retu to $82,500 effective March 1,

resulting in a total bonus of$13,026.48.

Concealment of 2002, 2003, 2004, and 2005 Fiscal Y ear-End Bonuses

20. By memorandum d".Led Juut: 30, 2006, DEFENDANT POLE provided the Chief of Staff

with a false accounting of bonuses he and other Kennedy Offce employees had received, which

concealed thetme amounts POLE had received and would receive, as follows:

'~'11~~l!~~~~~::~;:tPf~~~~~~ot::~ft~~~'~;:

$18,864.78

$5,000 $15,720.65

$5,000 $26,253.10

$5,000 $16,678.95

2006 Fiscal Year-End Bonus

2 J . m FTOmTii1)1 200 6tlroJ gh Sepember 2006 DEFFl~DANTPOIE commùtedtlien

following acts, among others, to defraud thc Senate of $8,026.48 by triggering excess payments

of $13,026.48 when only $5,000 in bonus payments had been aut!oiized:
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a. On July 10, 2006, POLE completed and submitted a P AA form to the Senate

Disbursing Offce that caused his iuual salar to rise from $82,500 to $160,659 for the

period from July 1 until August 1.

b. On Jiùy 17, 2006, POLE wrote a memorandum to the Chief of Staff, captioned

"FY 2007" inwhich he wrote, '1t is shaping up that it is inevitale that we are going to

have smaller bonuses this fiscal year than we did last year," without advising ¡he Chief of

Staff that POLE had already begu paying hiself a bonus.

c. Notwithstanding that POLE had received an email from ¡he Chief of Staff advising

that POLE woiùd receive a $5,000 bonus, on August 8, 2006, POLE completed and

submitted a PAA form to the Senate Disbursing Offce that caused his salary increase to

$160,659 to remai in effeot though Augut.

d. On Au"oust 28, 2006, POLE completcd and submitted a P AA form to tlie Senate

Disbursing Office that caused his salaiy increase to $ I 60,659 to remain in effect nntil

September 1, resulting in a total bonus of $13 ,026.48.

2007 Bonus

22. In January 2007, DEFENDANT POLE committed the following act, among others, to

defraud the Senate of$2,395.83, by trggerng excess payments in tht amount when no bonus

payments had been authorized:

c~,cc~~~c~ã:"""""'uñJanû:ãI~5'~:¿ötrr:i'OLñsuõn:îtãaTA1fGffi(tffìè~SêliãTImísòinsiíiglJrf1e~~~~'cc~c=~,~~

that caused his anual salar to rise from $82,500 to $140,000 effective January 1.
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Concealment of2006 Fiscal Year-End and Holiday Bonuses

23. On Jmiuary 23,2007, DEFENDANT POLE sent an email to the Chief of Staff in which

he wrote that POLE had been paid "an August bonus of 5k and a Christmas bonus of2k" in

2006, notwthstanding that POLE actually had been paid an August 2006 bonus of $13,026.48

and a 2005 Christmas bonus of $13,026.48.

WIRE COMMUNICATIONS

24. On Ol about the dates set fOlih below, POLE executed and attempted to execnte the

scheme and arifice to defraud and to obtai money by means of false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations, and promises, by transmitting and causing to be tranmitted by means of wire in

interstate commerce the following wire communcations in the form of wrtings, signs, signals,

pictues, and sounds as set forth in the count:

Count Interstate 'Vlre Communication .... . Approxiate Approximate
Date Amount

1 Transmission from U.S. Senate Disbursing Offce 2/28/2005 $2,944.07
in Washington, DC, to Federal Resere Banc in
Atlanta, GA, instructing the Fedcral Rcscrvc Bank
to direct deposit money into Defendant's account at
ihe Senale Federal Credit UnIonlocaled in
Alexandr, VA

2 Transmission from US. Senal" Disbursing Offc" 9/3012005 $2,532.07
. in Washington, DC, to Federal Reserve Ban in

Atlanta, GA, iiistructing the Federal Reserve Ban
to direct deposit nionev into Defendant' 8 account at

- ---- --- ----
~ìr~enate'l"ûernI erit'Cfb,ffbcaleû'"jtr" .
Alcxcandria, VA
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Count Interstate Wire Communication Approximate Approximate
Date Amount

3 Tranmission from U.S. Senate Disbursing Offce 2/28/2006 $2,784.54
in Washington, DC, to Federal Reserve Bank in
Atlanta, GA, instiucting the Federal Reserve Bank
to direct deposit money into Defendant's account at
the Senate Federal Credit Union located in
Alexandra, VA .

4 Transmission from U.S: Senate Disbursing Oftce 8/3li2006 $2,952.56
in Washington, DC, to Federal Reserve Ban in
Atlanta, GA, illstrctingthe Federal Reserve Bank
to direct deposit money into Defendant's account at
the Senate Federal Credit Union located in
Alexandra, VA

5 Tranmission from U.S. Senate Disbursing Offce 1/15/2007 $2,566.49
in Washington, DC, to Federal Reserve Banl( in
Atlanta, GA, instrcting the Federal Reserve Bank
to direot deposit money into Defendant's account at
the Senate Federal Credit Union located in 

Alexandria, VA

All in violation of 18 US.c. §§ 1343 and 2.

COUN SIX
18 U.S.c. §§ 641 mid 2

Theft

25. Paragraphs i to 8 and 13 to 23 are incorporated herein by reference.

26. From Januar 2005 through at least January 2007, in the District of Columbia and

elsewhere, defendantNGOZT POLE, did emhezzle, steal, purloin, and knowingly convert to his
------------------~--~--~--,--=""="'="'_~~.,.,.=""_=.~_=,,~=,.,.,=,.'c=_"".".'=".'.0_

use inore than $1,000 of money of the United States, the United States Senate, and the Office of

United States Senator Edward M. Kénedy, that is, POLE engaged in a course-of-conduct

through which he repeatedly caused the Sente Disbursing Offce to pay hiiilarger amounts of

money than had heel) authorized by the Chief of StaIT for whom he worked, aiù then liiù the
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existence ofthese larger-than-authorized payments by transmitting to the Chief of Staff records

which falsely retleeted that ?OLE had received only the authorized pa)'Ients and not the larger

payments which POLE actuilly had received.

All in violation ofl8 U.S.c. S§ 641 and 2.

A TRUE BILL

FOREPERSON

RAYvONDN. HUSER.
Aotino-hief

M. Kendall Day
Ethan Leviso1i
Trial Attomeys, Public Integrty SB~tion

Crimal Division, U.S. Deparent of Justice

----------------------~-_...._--_....._- ----------------~:'''-':-C,_',~'''-~o'-''7,õ'õ~-C,'~:,,';---~,,-~o':-c:-õ':-cõ,,'õõ'õ_- _-o,--~-,-~-,-c-,-"----=".~="=c~,c=_--::-::e'c,'_",,o=c,~"""'õ':-=e:o:,o,--------
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